
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : DATE FILED:___________________

v. : CRIMINAL NO. 01-               

KEITH VARGA  : VIOLATION: 18 U.S.C. § 371
   (Conspiracy to commit 

                           unlawful sports betting and 
   money laundering  - 1 Count)
   18 U.S.C. § 1084(a)
   (Engaging in business of unlawful

               sports betting and 
   wagering - 1 Count)
   18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(2)
   (Money laundering - 1 Count)
   18 U.S.C. § 982
   (Notice of Forfeiture)

I N F O R M A T I O N 

COUNT ONE

THE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY CHARGES THAT:

THE CONSPIRACY

1. From in or about August, 1997, through in or about November, 1998, in the

Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and elsewhere, the defendant

KEITH VARGA,

knowingly and intentionally conspired and agreed with others known to the United States

Attorney, to commit offenses against the United States, that is:

a) to engage in the business of sports betting and wagering, and  knowingly used wire

communication facilities for the transmission, in interstate and foreign commerce, of sports
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betting, wagering, and information assisting in the placing of sports bets and wagers, and the

transmission of wire communications which entitled recipients to receive money and credit as a

result of sports betting and wagering, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1084(a); and

b) to knowingly transport, transmit and transfer funds, and cause the transportation,

transmittal and transfer of funds, from a place outside of the United States to a place in the United

States, constituting the offense of money laundering, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 

§ 1956(a)(2)(A).

21ST CENTURY SPORTS WAGERING

2. From in or about August, 1997, through in or about November, 1998, defendant

KEITH VARGA owned and operated 21st Century Sports Wagering ("21st Century"), an

international sports betting and wagering business located in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania,

which used wire communications for the transmission, in interstate and foreign commerce, of

sports betting, wagering, and information assisting in the placing of sports betting and wagering,

and the transmission of wire communications which entitled the recipients to receive money and

credits as a result of sports betting and wagering, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Section 1084(a).

Manner and Means of the Conspiracy

It was the manner and means of the conspiracy that:

3. Defendant KEITH VARGA operated 21st Century from various locations in the

Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, including but not limited to, Bethlehem,

Allentown, Bath and Nazareth, Pennsylvania, and Oranjestad, Aruba.
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4. Defendant KEITH VARGA established and used numerous telephone lines at

various locations for the purpose of providing sports betting and wagering information, and

receiving interstate telephone calls for actual sports bets and wagers from customers throughout

the United States. 

5. Defendant KEITH VARGA operated 21st Century together with several other

individuals who he managed and supervised in the daily operations of 21st Century, such as,

workers who handled the numerous telephone calls from customers who wanted to place sports

bets through 21st Century.

6. Between March 12, 1998 and April 11, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA received

approximately 12,612 telephone calls at 21st Century for the purpose of obtaining sports betting

and wagering information, and for the placing of sports bets and wagers.

7. Between August, 1998 and October, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA received

approximately 7,856 telephone calls at 21st Century for the purpose of obtaining sports betting

and wagering information, and for the placing of sports bets and wagers.

8. Defendant KEITH VARGA directed numerous individuals who placed sports bets

and wagers through 21st Century to send checks and wire transfers of cash through Western

Union for payment of the sports bets and wagers.

9. Defendant KEITH VARGA created personal accounts and designated personal

account numbers for all customers who placed sports bets and wagers through 21st Century, and

these accounts were credited with funds received from customers and/or debited for lost bets and

wagers.
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10. Defendant KEITH VARGA established various financial accounts used to conceal

the source and use of the funds received by 21st Century, with the intent to promote the carrying

on of the illegal sports betting and wagering business.

11. Defendant KEITH VARGA directed customers to wire transfer funds to place

sports bets and wagers through 21st Century, by Western Union, to a bank account which

defendant VARGA established in Oranjestad, Aruba.

12.  Defendant KEITH VARGA traveled to Aruba every four to six weeks for the

purpose of obtaining certain amounts of these funds, approximately $25,000 each trip,  which he

deposited into accounts in the United States, and which concealed the source and use of the

funds, and were used to carry on the illegal sports betting and wagering business.

13.  From August, 1997 through November, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA 

directed wire transfers of funds from an Aruba bank to a bank within the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, and obtained cashier checks from the Aruba bank account which he deposited into

bank accounts in the United States, within the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.  

14. Between August, 1997 and November, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA obtained

approximately 2,628 wire transfers of cash from Western Union Financial Services, totaling

approximately $755,769.00, as a result of sports betting and wagering operations through 21st

Century.  

Overt Acts

In furtherance of the conspiracy, defendant KEITH VARGA, and others known to

the United States Attorney, committed the following overt acts in the Eastern District of 
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Pennsylvania and elsewhere:

1. On or about December 10, 1997, defendant KEITH VARGA caused an individual

in Schererville, Indiana, who had placed sports bets and wagers through 21st Century, to wire

transfer $1,050 to a bank account in Oranjestad, Aruba created by defendant VARGA. 

2. On or about December 12, 1997, defendant KEITH VARGA obtained $1,050

from the wire transfer which had been deposited in the Aruba bank account, by directing the

transfer of those funds at the King's Supermarket on Schoenersville Road in Bethlehem,

Pennsylvania, and depositing them into a First Union Bank account in the United States.

3. On or about January 7, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA caused an individual in

San Francisco, California, who had placed sports bets and wagers through 21st Century, to wire

transfer $1,000 to a bank account in Oranjestad, Aruba created by defendant VARGA.  

4. On or about January 14, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA obtained $1,000 from

the wire transfer by directing the transfer of those funds at Guridy's Travel Agency on West 4th

Street in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, and depositing them into a Summit Bank account in the United

States, in the name of his mother, Ruth Varga.

5. On or about January 21, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA caused an individual in

Florence, New Jersey, who had placed sports bets and wagers through 21st Century, to wire

transfer $1,350 to a bank account in Oranjestad, Aruba created by defendant VARGA.    

6. On or about January 23, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA obtained $1,350 from

the wire transfer by directing the transfer of those funds at the King's Supermarket on

Schoenersville Road in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, and depositing into a First Union Bank account

in the United States.
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7. On or about April 23, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA wire transferred $2,900

from a bank account in Oranjestad, Aruba to himself, which he cashed at the King's Supermarket

on Schoenersville Road in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania and deposited the funds into a First Union

Bank account in the United States.

8. From August, 1997 through November, 1998, defendant KEITH VARGA

obtained approximately $755,769.00 from the unlawful sports betting and wagering business

through 21st Century, which were wire transferred to a bank account in Oranjestad, Aruba and 

deposited into various bank accounts in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, for the purpose of

promoting the illegal sports betting and wagering business.

All in violation of  Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.
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COUNT TWO

THE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. The allegations in paragraphs 2 through 14 of Count One of this Information are

incorporated here by reference.

2. From in or about August, 1997 through in or about November, 1998, in the

Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant

KEITH VARGA

being engaged in the business of betting and wagering, knowingly used wire communication

facilities for the transmission, in interstate and foreign commerce, of bets, wagers, and information

assisting in the placing of bets and wagers on sporting events and contests, and for the

transmission of wire communications which entitled the recipients to receive money and credit as

a result of sports bets and wagers, that is, defendant KEITH VARGA, caused 21st Century to

accept sports bets and wagers at various locations in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, by

telephone, including but not limited to, January 7, 1998, when defendant KEITH VARGA caused

an individual from San Francisco, California  to use a telephone from San Francisco, California to

call 21st Century in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania for the purpose of placing a sports bet and

wager through 21st Century.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1084(a).
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COUNT THREE

THE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. The allegations in paragraphs 2 through 14 of Count One of this Information are

incorporated here by reference.

2. On or about November 23, 1998, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, and

elsewhere, the defendant

KEITH VARGA

knowingly transported, transmitted and transferred funds, and caused the transportation,

transmittal and transfer of funds, from a place outside of the United States to a place in the United

States, that is, the wire transfer of  funds in the approximate amount of $19,484.00 from a bank

account of Keith Varga in Oranjestad, Aruba to an account of "Ruth Varga" at the Keystone

Savings Bank in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, with the intent to promote the carrying on of the

specified unlawful activity, that is, the illegal sports betting and wagering business, in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Section 1084(a).

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(2)(A).
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NOTICE OF FORFEITURE 

1.  As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371,

conspiracy to commit money laundering, set forth in Count 1 of this Information, the defendant

 KEITH VARGA

shall forfeit to the United States of America any and all property, real and personal, involved in

such offenses, and any property traceable to such property, including, but not limited to, the sum

of $755,769.00 and

             2. If any of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or

 omission of the defendant:

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

(c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

(d) has been substantially diminished in value; or

(e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided

without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b), 

incorporating 21 U.S.C. § 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any other property of the defendant up to 
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the value of the property subject to forfeiture.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982.

BY:

_____________________________
PATRICK L. MEEHAN
United States Attorney


